SARRAH EVENTS 2011-2012

Rod Wellington, (CEO) SARRAH meeting
with The Hon. Tanya Plibersek MP,
Minister for Health.

Rod Wellington, (CEO) SARRAH and Senator
Rachel Siewert, Chair of the Senate Community
Affairs References Committee: Inquiry into
Palliative Care in Australia.

Meeting with the Opposition Rural Backbench Committee.
Left to right: Rowan Ramsay (Secretary), Rod Wellington
(CEO) SARRAH and Senator Bill Heffernan (Chair).

Breakfast hosted by the SARRAH Secretariat with Tony Windsor and his
Advisors and Minister Plibersek’s Advisors and senior Indigenous Allied
Health Australia representatives.
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SARRAH
ORGANISATIONAL CHART

During 2011-2012, SARRAH’s Board and Advisory Committee both met separately on
nine (9) and five (5) occasions respectively. The Board and Advisory Committee generally
meet every second month via teleconference, however there was a face-to-face Board
meeting in September 2011.
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WHO WE ARE
SARRAH (Services for Australian Rural and Remote Allied Health) is nationally recognised as a
peak body representing rural and remote allied health professionals.
SARRAH, established in 1995, is a ‘grassroots’ organisation, able to address the very particular
needs of the individual rural and remote allied health professional.
Professions may include, but are not limited to:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Audiology
Chiropractics
Dental and Oral Health
 Dentistry
 Dental Hygiene
 Dental Therapy
 Dental Prosthetics
Dietetics and Nutrition
Diabetes Education
Exercise Physiology
Genetic Counselling
Health Promotion
Medical Radiation Science
 Medical Imaging
 Nuclear Medicine Technology
 Radiation Therapy

Occupational Therapy
Optometry
Orthoptics
Osteopathy
Paramedic Practice
Physiotherapy
Podiatry
Prosthetics and Orthotics
Psychology
Social Work
Speech Pathology
Sonography

SARRAH recognises rural and remote Australia as a continuum of communities outside major
metropolitan centres.
SARRAH has established an extensive Regional, State and National network of allied health
professionals living and working in rural and remote Australia, encompassing the broad spectrum
of health services provided.
SARRAH is committed to providing support for allied health professionals in all sectors.
SARRAH advocates for rural and remote allied health professionals, allied health students, and
allied health practice on local, state and national levels.
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MISSION, VISION
& VALUES
SARRAH’s primary objective is to advocate for, develop and provide services to enable Allied
Health Professionals who live and work in rural and remote areas of Australia to confidently
and competently carry out their professional duties in providing a variety of health services.

VISION
SARRAH’s ongoing vision is to continue to assist with and enhance further development of a
networked membership which is proud, passionate, valued and connected with their communities
and partnerships, and through this become recognised and influential in policy development and
service delivery.
SARRAH’s vision is of an association whose members are:
•
•
•
•

proud to be allied health professionals;
passionate about rural and remote health;
valued and recognised as a vital and necessary part of rural and remote health;
connected to the communities they serve; and that they;
 are influential on health policy; and
 collaborate with other organisations in pursuit of the primary objective.

VALUES
The articulation of the fundamental values that distinguish SARRAH as an organisation is
important to underpin the achievement of SARRAH’s primary objective and the prioritisation of
organisational activities and resource allocation.
This articulation of values we call “our” perspective includes actions such as:
•
•
•
•
•

Inclusiveness;
Fairness;
Equity;
Advocacy; and
Respect.

SARRAH provides individual rural and remote allied health professionals and students with
opportunities to inform and influence by contributing “our” perspective to policy and planning
processes that govern service delivery to rural and remote communities with the ultimate goal
being enhanced community health outcomes.
“Our” perspective is demonstrated by qualities such as:
•
•
•
•
•

Valuing the individual grassroots allied health professional;
Consultation;
Achievement orientation;
Connectedness to community; and
Can-do attitude.
7

Making a Difference

88

SARRAH STAKEHOLDERS
SARRAH is committed to supporting allied health professionals and students to provide primary
health care to communities in rural and remote Australia.

SARRAH is a member of a number of National and State committees and actively provides input
and participates in policy formulation activities.
A list of organisations and committees that SARRAH is a member of includes but is not limited to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Associations Forum
Australian Health Care Reform Alliance
Australian Journal of Rural Health Board of Management and Editorial Board
Better Start for Children with Disability Expert Reference Group
Bush Support Services Roundtable Panel
CPD Works
CRANAplus Research Sub-Committee
Health Workforce Australia - Allied Health Stakeholder Consultative Group
Health Workforce Australia - Standing Advisory Group - Professions
Health Workforce Australia - Council of Future Leaders
Medical Specialist Outreach Assistance Program - Advisory Forums
Medicare Australia Stakeholder Consultative Group
Ministerial Rural Health Stakeholder Forum
National Allied Health Clinical Education Network
National Breast and Ovarian Cancer Centre - Rural Health Professional Advisory Network
National Compact - Government and Third Sector
National Primary Health Care Partnership
National Rural Health Alliance Council
Nursing and Allied Health Scholarship Support Scheme Reference Group
NEHTA Stakeholder Reference Forum
Nursing and Allied Health Rural Locum Scheme
Queensland Primary Healthcare Network
Tasmanian Allied Health Professional Advancement Committee
Western Australia Medicare Local Transition Advisory Group.
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THE BOARD

BOARD & ADVISORY
COMMITTEE

The administration of the affairs, property and funds of SARRAH and the authority to interpret
the meaning of the Constitution and any matter relating to SARRAH on which the Constitution is
silent will be under the general control and management of the Board.
The Board comprised:
President
Helen McGregor
Member
Kathryn Fitzgerald
Deputy President
Tanya Lehmann
Member
Daniel Mahony
Hon Secretary
Elaine Ashworth
Member
Tracy Raymond (nee Leon)
Hon Treasurer
Ruth Chalk
Member
Scott Wagner (to 21.12.11)
Member
Rob Curry
Member
Sheila Keane (from 22.2.12)
The term of a Board Member elected at an AGM (Annual General Meeting) is two years.
Board Members elected to an Office may not hold the same Office for more than 3 consecutive
terms unless the Members agree to the further term/s by Ordinary Resolution.

THE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
The Terms of Reference of the Advisory Committee is determined by the Board and may include
such matters as:
1. Provide input and advice to the Board on policy and long-term strategic objectives of
SARRAH.
2. Provide a convenient and accessible forum in which the view of the Members may be
expressed and discussed and to better reflect those views for the Board.
3. Make recommendations in respect of matters on which the Board requests.
4. Meet biennially at the SARRAH Summit (or such event as may replace this) to recommend
SARRAH’s long-term agenda, for implementation by the Board; and
5. Meet a minimum of four times per year to receive reports from the Board on implementation
and provide feedback and consultation to the Board.
A list of SARRAH Network Coordinators follows:
Australian Capital Territory Brian Hill
Michael Bishop
Queensland
Catherine Maloney
New South Wales
Petra Bovery-Spencer
Victoria
Tasmania
Susan Ballard
Jo Lawson
South Australia
Kathryn Fitzgerald
Western Australia
Annie Farthing
Northern Territory
Aboriginal Health Worker Inez Carter
Nina Quinn
Audiology
Nicole Creaser
Dietetics
Hazel Harries-Jones
Medical Imaging
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Occupational Therapy
Optometry
Oral Health
Pharmacy
Physiotherapy
Podiatry
Psychology
RRAHRA
Social Work
Speech Pathology
Student

Sarah Rheinberger
Vacant
Cathryn Carboon
Lindy Swain
Kerstin McPherson
Patrick Wells
Kerrie Kelly
Sheila Keane
May Doncon
Claire Salter
Kristy McGregor

SARRAH BOARD
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SARRAH SECRETARIAT
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PRESIDENT'S REPORT
Welcome to the SARRAH Annual Report 2011-2012 and the review of our achievements for the
year.
You will find in this report the statements of our core values and principles and the strategies we
employ to achieve the goals that have been developed from our strategic and operational plans.
You will also find our audited financial statements and review of operations.
I would like to acknowledge at the outset that all of SARRAH’s achievements for 2011-2012 have
been through the hard work of our staff and of the wider membership who, as individuals and
collegiate groups, contribute beyond what we expect to achieve.
I would also like to thank the SARRAH CEO Rod Wellington and the Secretariat staff for their
assistance and guidance to me and my fellow Board members and Advisory Committee members
in their continued support throughout the year.
SARRAH continued to take the lead role and work with HWA (Health Workforce Australia) to
establish an AHSCG (Allied Health Stakeholder Consultative Group). The role of the AHSCG is
to provide advice to HWA assisting in its development of strategic directions in identifying and
considering innovative and flexible health workforce solutions for allied health professionals
across Australia. The AHSCG held its inaugural meeting with HWA in November 2011 and will
continue to meet during 2012-2013.
During September 2011, the National SARRAH Summit held in Canberra was once again a
wonderful opportunity to reach directly into the national government environment and convey
the SARRAH core messages to the parliamentarians and their advisors. Day one included refining
the SARRAH core goals and future directions and convening our Annual General Meeting. Day
two and three were very productive with a program of meetings with various Ministers, Members
of Parliament from all sides of politics and other key industry stakeholders.
The SARRAH CEO and staff have continued to progress these relationships with good effect, in
particular with the Minister for Health, Tanya Plibersek, who was appointed after the SARRAH
summit. During May 2012, SARRAH hosted a BBQ breakfast with Minister Plibersek’s advisors,
Tony Windsor and staff and senior representatives from Indigenous Allied Health Australia. The
breakfast proved to be a stand out event in relationship building – a freezing morning but a
consultation strategy that obviously worked!
We continued planning for our National 2012 SARRAH Conference in Tasmania and I hope you
find that it is a wonderful opportunity for new learning, new ideas, and catching up with your
allied health colleagues. My thanks to the Conference Organising Committee members for their
hard work in planning the conference which I am sure will be another memorable event. In
reviewing the goals of our current strategic planning I believe that SARRAH has once again made
remarkable achievements towards these goals.
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A key business item for SARRAH has been its continued administration of the allied health stream
of the NAHSSS (Nursing and Allied Health Scholarship and Support Scheme). SARRAH continues
to play a leading role in the administration of support programs via this funding to assist rural
and remote allied health students and clinicians to fulfil their educational and practice skilling
requirements. It was pleasing that SARRAH was recently recognised for its administration of
this scheme by the allocation of additional allied health scholarship places in Tasmania. There is
continued strong demand for each of the allied health streams within the scholarship scheme.
SARRAH has again been diligent in responding to a range of discussion papers and personal
attendance at meetings and consultations to a degree that has, at times, stretched our members
time and available resources. However these activities have resulted in an enhanced profile that
promotes our expertise in rural and remote health care.
Key priorities for the coming years will be adapting our planning and goals to the structural
reforms occurring in health and the impacts on the health care landscape in rural and remote
Australia. This includes continuing negotiations that have been underway for some time with
Medicare Locals that have rural and remote geographical coverage in regard to strategic alliances,
clinical governance for allied health clinicians, providing allied health support, information and
allied health advocacy.
This activity in conjunction with other strategies comprehensively take advantage of the
opportunities to develop our capacity, via our members and our health consumers, to advocate
for equity in support for allied health professionals practicing in rural and remote Australia.
SARRAH will continue to focus on consolidating and strengthening our profile as the nationally
recognised peak body representing rural and remote allied health professionals. Active
participation in reforms, advocacy for more support for rural and remote allied health
professionals, along with active membership participation are a demonstration of our continuing
commitment to providing services for allied health professionals to help them to best serve their
communities and improve the health outcomes in rural and remote Australia.

Helen McGregor
President

Helen McGregor
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STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS
2011-2012
STAKEHOLDERS
Goal One: Members
SARRAH increases the number of members as well as those that actively participate in the
organisation.
Goal Two: Health Reforms
SARRAH continues as a leader to advocate at all levels of Government for reforms of health
services to improve health outcomes in rural and remote Australia.
Goal Three: Workforce
SARRAH represents a workforce which is essential to addressing health inequality for residents
of rural and remote communities.

INTERNAL BUSINESS PRACTICES
Goal Four: Corporate Governance
SARRAH maintains mechanisms to support accountable and transparent governance procedures
including planning, financial management and reporting.
Goal Five: Projects and Programs
SARRAH maintains efficient administrative systems to effectively manage projects and programs.

PEOPLE, LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT
Goal Six: Human Resources
SARRAH recruits, fosters and values highly trained staff.
Goal Seven: Information and Knowledge Management
SARRAH maintains effective information technology and knowledge management systems to
improve performance, retain corporate knowledge, and provide a resource for all stakeholders.
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(AOP)
ANNUAL OPERATIONAL PLAN
2011-2012
The SARRAH AOP (Annual Operational Plan) is reviewed annually and outlines the pursuit and
resolution of three major key priorities (Stakeholders, Internal Business Practice and People,
Learning and Development); in accordance with the SARRAH Mission, Vision and Values
Statement.
The SARRAH AOP identifies and addresses seven key areas. These are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Members;
Health Reform;
Workforce;
Corporate Governance;
Projects and Programs;
Human Resources; and
Information and Knowledge Management.

BALANCED SCORECARD APPROACH
The balanced scorecard approach to strategy development and planning has been adopted to
facilitate enhancement of SARRAH’s performance management system.
The balanced scorecard approach provides a focus on delivering results for stakeholders. Applied
consistently, it also ensures that each level of planning contributes to the development and
priorities of the next.
SARRAH has applied a balanced scorecard approach to implement the Strategic Plan for 2010-2013.
The Strategic Plan was revised during 2011. To ensure effective integration of planned activity
with SARRAH’s Strategic Plan, the balanced scorecard approach has been ‘cascaded’ to the 20112012 AOP. In turn, objectives and initiatives in the AOP shaped team and individual staff work
plans.
At the operational level, the balanced scorecard methodology recognises:
•
•
•

The importance of identifying the value, benefits and results that SARRAH aims to achieve
for its stakeholders;
The internal business processes which SARRAH must meet to achieve desired outcomes;
and
The organisational elements of people, learning and development that support the
internal business processes.

Taken together, the strategic direction and operational objectives are aimed at delivering
SARRAH’s primary objective.
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AOP STAKEHOLDERS:
MEMBERS
OBJECTIVE
“SARRAH increases the number of members as well as those that actively
participate in the organisation.”
ACHIEVEMENTS
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Informed SARRAH members of activities and general information through the
publication of 12 monthly editions of the SARRAH e-Bulletin and 5 Special Broadcasts.
Maintained the SARRAH website including posting the 2010-2011 Annual SARRAH
Report, SARRAH’s Quarterly Reports, as well as position papers, submissions and other
publications.
Convened and evaluated the 2011 National SARRAH Summit.
Followed up outcomes of the 2011 National SARRAH Summit.
Continued enhancements to the electronic SARRAH membership database.
Followed up members who had not renewed 2011-2012 SARRAH membership.
Continued planning for the 2012 National SARRAH Conference – Rural and Remote
Practice Totally Wild.

AOP STAKEHOLDERS:
HEALTH REFORMS
OBJECTIVE
“SARRAH continues as a leader to advocate at all levels of Government
for reforms of health services to improve health outcomes in rural
and remote Australia.”
ACHIEVEMENTS
1.
2.
3.

4.

Maintained contact with SARRAH’s other stakeholders including the Minister for Health
and Ageing’s Office (Ministers Roxon and Plibersek) and DoHA (Department of Health and
Ageing).
Provided submissions to various stakeholders and details can be found at Appendix A.
Developed position papers on:
a. Allied Health Assistants in Rural and Remote Australia (December 2011); and
b. Rural and Remote Access to Medicare and Related Allied Health Services (January
2012).
Also refer to Appendix B – Meetings and Forums.
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AOP STAKEHOLDERS:
WORKFORCE
OBJECTIVE
“SARRAH represents a workforce which is essential to addressing health inequality
for residents of rural and remote communities.”
ACHIEVEMENTS
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

6.

Facilitated with HWA (Health Workforce Australia) the establishment of an AHSCG (Allied
Health Stakeholder Consultative Group) forum comprising 5 key stakeholders including
SARRAH.
Established and maintained contact with the 36 Medicare Locals which have rural and
remote geographical coverage across Australia.
Convened 1 teleconference for SARRAH representatives to discuss the progress of the
RHOF (Rural Health Outreach Fund), formerly MSOAP (Medical Specialist Outreach
Assistance Program).
Continued to monitor HWA progress against its 2011-12 Work Plan, through the AHSCG
forum.
Submitted proposals on:
a. a National Rural and Remote Allied Health Mentor Scheme to the Minister’s Office
and DoHA (November 2011).
b. a Sun Smiles Project to develop an educational tool providing evidenced-based
education, training and support for rural and remote oral health workers, Aboriginal
Health Workers and other members of the rural health workforce to improve oral
health in rural and remote communities (February 2012).
c. the HWA Aged Care Workforce Reform Project – Building Workforce Capacity
to Prevent Functional Decline in the Community to Health Workforce Australia
(February 2012).
d. a funding proposal to deliver online training for allied health professionals - Allied
Health Assistants: Supervision and Delegation (February 2012).
e. SARRAH Priority Projects and Activities to the Minister’s Office (June 2012).
Also refer to the Appendices for other activities.
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AOP INTERNAL BUSINESS
PRACTICES: CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
OBJECTIVE
“SARRAH maintains mechanisms to support accountable and transparent
governance procedures including planning, financial
management and reporting.”
ACHIEVEMENTS
1.
2.
3.
4.

5.
6.
7.

Convened, reported and provided administrative support to 9 Board, 5 Advisory
Committee and 11 Audit Committee meetings. One of the meetings included a face-toface Board meeting held during the SARRAH 2011 National Summit.
Maintained SARRAH’s financial management and reporting systems.
Convened the 2011 AGM (Annual General Meeting) which included tabling the
SARRAH 2010-11 Annual Report. Following the AGM copies of the Annual Report were
circulated to all SARRAH members and key stakeholders.
Called for nominations and appointed Network Cordinators for:
• Northern Territory
• Victoria
• New South Wales
• South Australia
• Tasmania
• Queensland
• Medical Imaging
• Social Work
• Podiatry
• Occupational Therapy
• Speech Pathology.
Commenced monthly SARRAH State Network Coordinator meetings.
Reviewed, amended and approved the SARRAH Strategic Plan 2010-13.
Developed and finalised an AOP for 2012-13.
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AOP INTERNAL BUSINESS
PRACTICES: PROJECTS &
PROGRAMS
OBJECTIVE
“SARRAH maintains efficient administrative systems to effectively manage
projects and programs.”
ACHIEVEMENTS
1.
2.

3.
4.
5.

6.

Continued administering the allied health streams of the NAHSSS (Nursing & Allied
Health Scholarship and Support Scheme) and the RRHSSS (Rural and Remote Health
Stakeholder Support Scheme).
Submitted 2 applications seeking funding from DoHA (Department of Health and Ageing)
under the Health System Capacity Development Fund for SARRAH:
a. Representatives to attend HWA (Health Workforce Austalia) and Medicare Local
consultative forums.
b. Secretariat support of ongoing activities through additonal staff.
Provided to DoHA SARRAH’s AOP 2012-13 under the RRHSSS.
Provided NAHSSS and RRHSSS progress reports to DoHA.
Finalised new scholarship offers for the following streams:
a. 127 Undergraduate
b. 84 Clinical Psychology
c. 89 Continuing Professional Development
d. 85 Postgraduate
e. 240 Clinical Placements.
At 30 June 2012 SARRAH administered 845 NAHSSS new and continuing
scholars.

Did you know?

The vast majority of allied health
professionals have a minimum of 4 years
of university training.
22
22

AOP PEOPLE, LEARNING &
DEVELOPMENT:
HUMAN RESOURCES
OBJECTIVE
“SARRAH recruits, fosters and values highly trained staff.”
ACHIEVEMENTS
1.

2.
3.

4.
5.

The following staff movements occurred during the reporting period:
a. Lisa Hall commenced work as the Administrative Assistant/Membership Support
Officer on 29 June 2011.
b. Caitlin Thompson commenced work as the Clinical Placement Scholarship Stream
Assistant (3 days per week) on 11 July 2011.
c. Jessicah Mullins finished work to take up a full-time position in the private sector on
15 July 2011.
Continued to develop staff in their roles and functions, including a Secretariat Staff
Planning Day at Sutton Forrest NSW on the 22 July 2011.
Arranged for staff to attend the following training and development forums:
a. Business Writing Skills Workshop
b. Cultural Awareness Training
c. Understanding Statistics
d. Training and Assessment.
Reviewed SARRAH’s Human Resource Policy and Chief Executive Instructions.
Received endorsement from the Australian Taxation Office as a Health Promotion Charity
for Charity Tax Concessions.

Close the Gap Day 2012
Left to Right Craig Dukes (CEO), Faye McMillan
(President) of Indigenous Allied Health Australia &
Rod Wellington (CEO) SARRAH.
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INFORMATION & KNOWLEDGE
MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE
“SARRAH maintains effective information technology and knowledge
management systems to improve performance, retain corporate knowledge,
and provide a resource for all stakeholders.”
ACHIEVEMENTS
1.
2.
3.

Continued enhancing information resources through reviewing and amending existing
information systems and databases.
Changed IT service provider effective from 1 April 2012.
Upgraded reporting functions for the SARRAH membership database.

Did you know?
There is a high prevalence (level) of mental disorders in the Australian population. A 2007 survey
showed that 1 in 5 Australians had experienced a mental disorder in the previous 12 months.
Overall, the most common types were anxiety disorders (14%), affective (mood) disorders (6%)
and substance use disorders (5%).
The prevalence of anxiety and affective disorders was highest for people aged 35–44, and more
common among females. The prevalence of substance use disorders was highest for people aged
16–24, and more common among males.

24
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FUTURE DIRECTIONS
STAKEHOLDERS CURRENT BUSINESS ISSUES
“Participate as a member of HWA (Health Workforce Australia) Allied Health
Stakeholder Consultative Group to provide input into the HWA strategic directions
and Annual Work Plan.”
“Continue to respond to the SARRAH Member and Non-Member Surveys.”
“Modify and implement the SARRAH Primary Objective and Strategic Plan following the
strategic review by members at the 2011 National SARRAH Summit.”
“Continue enhancements to the electronic SARRAH membership database.”

STAKEHOLDERS FUTURE MILESTONES
1.

Monitor outcomes from the Australian Government on the reports produced by the
various strategic health planning bodies.

2.

Monitor the development, implementation and expansion of Australian Government
programs providing allied health services to rural and remote communities, in particular
to Indigenous communities [for example: RHOF (Rural Health Outreach Fund)].

3.

Maintain contact with the 36 Medicare Locals which have rural and remote geographical
coverage across Australia.

4.

Monitor outcomes from the 2012 Federal Budget, in particular the oral health package.

5.

Develop a strategy to source funding from corporate Australia.

6.

Commence planning for the 2013 National SARRAH Summit.

INTERNAL BUSINESS PROCEDURES CURRENT BUSINESS ISSUES
“Continue enhancements to communications strategies.”
“Continue planning for the 2012 SARRAH National Conference.”

INTERNAL BUSINESS PROCEDURES FUTURE MILESTONES
1.

Provide input and support, where possible, to SARRAH’s Working Groups.

2.

Continue to respond to key outcomes arising from the SARRAH 2011 National Summit.

3.

Continue to administer the allied health streams of the NAHSSS (Nursing and Allied Health
Scholarship and Support Scheme) and the RRHSSS (Rural and Remote Health Stakeholder
Support Scheme).

4.

Continue enhancements to the SAPS (IT) functionality in particular reporting capabilities
used to support the administration of the NAHSSS.

5.

Develop a Risk Management, Business Continuity Plan and Fraud Plan.
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PEOPLE, LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT CURRENT BUSINESS ISSUES
“Monitor developments with the Government’s ‘Fair Work Bill’ in particular the NES
(National Employment Standards)”

PEOPLE, LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT FUTURE MILESTONES
1.

Continue to review SARRAH’s human resource policies ensuring alignment with the NES
and private sector local labour market conditions.

2.

Conduct staff appraisals and develop and implement the 2012-2013 Staff Training and
Development Calendar.

Did you know?
In 2006, there were 1,171 practising dental therapists, 674 practising hygienists and 371
practising oral health therapists. Dental therapists were the oldest group among the oral health
labour force, with an average age of 42.9 years. The oral health practitioner workforce was
overwhelmingly female, with 98.8% of dental therapists, 96.7% of hygienists and 94.8% of oral
health therapists being female in 2006.
The large majority (82.0%) of dental therapists worked in the public sector while hygienists
practised predominantly in the private sector (92.7%). Two-thirds of oral health therapists
(62.0%) worked in private general practice. The distribution of hygienists across remoteness
areas was highly skewed towards the more populous regions. Oral health therapists worked the
longest week (33.4 hours).

Not everyone is smiling
Australians living today experience relatively good oral health compared to those in the past.
However oral health is linked to socioeconomic status. When the adult population is divided
into thirds by household income (adjusted for the size of the household), oral health improves
as we move from the lowest income group to middle and highest income.
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2011 SARRAH NATIONAL SUMMIT
The 2011 National SARRAH Summit was convened in Canberra during 11th-14th September 2011
inclusive. The venue for the Summit was Rydges Capital Hill in Forrest, Canberra for Days 1 and 2.
Summit delegates met at Parliament House for Days 3 and 4.
The National SARRAH Summit is an important strategic planning event for the organisation.
The staff of the Secretariat, in particular the CEO, the Business Manager and Administration
Support Officer worked to determine the agenda for the event, associated logistics, social events,
planning for parliamentary delegations and meetings with external stakeholders.
The 2011 National SARRAH Summit received sponsorship, which was greatly appreciated, from
NeHTA (National e-Health Transition Authority).
The Summit was attended by 9 SARRAH Board Members and 9 representatives from the SARRAH
Advisory Committee.

AGENDA
Days 1 and 2 of the Summit focused on strategic planning, training and development and meeting
with key stakeholders. Items discussed and completed activities included:
•

Reviewed key governance documents including the 2010-2013 Strategic Plan and 20112012 AOP.
• Received an update on the progress of the SARRAH Capacity Building Working Group
which included a workshop to prioritise key issues.
• Conducted the 2011 SARRAH AGM (Annual General Meeting) which included the
presentation of the 2010-2011 Annual Report and the re-election of Office Bearers.
• Participated in a strategic planning workshop in preparation for the meetings at
Parliament House specifically reviewing SARRAH’s list of ‘High impact strategies requiring
action 2011-2012’.
• Attended a media training session delivered by Glenn Milne: How to effectively deliver
your key messages.
• Attended a meeting with a senior officer from the Department of Health and Ageing on
Medicare Locals and related issues in rural and remote Australia.
• Attended a session led by NeHTA: e-health – What is it, where is it at and the impact on
allied health professionals practising in rural and remote Australia.
Days 3 and 4 of the Summit were held at Parliament House. The Summit delegates held meetings
with the following parliamentarians:
• The Hon. Mark Butler, MP (ALP) – Minister for Mental Health and Ageing
• The Hon. Warren Snowdon, MP (ALP) – Minister for Indigenous Health
• Robert (Bob) Katter, MP (Independent)
• Frank Jackson – Senior Advisor to the Hon. Warren Truss, MP (Nationals)
• Senator Di Natale (Greens) – Portfolio responsibilities including health
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•
•
•
•
•

The Hon. Nicola Roxon, MP (ALP) – Minister for Health and Ageing
Senator Jan McLucas (ALP) – Parliamentary Secretary for Disabilities and Carers
Peter Besseling – Advisor to Robert (Rob) Oakeshott, MP (Independent)
Graham Nutall and John Clements – Advisors to Tony Windsor, MP (Independent)
Senate Standing Committee on Rural Affairs and Transport.

The majority of Summit delegates returned home at the conclusion of Day 3. A small delegation
of Board members and the CEO remained for Day 4 to attend Parliament House and meet with:
• The Hon. Simon Crean, MP (ALP) – Minister for Regional Australia, Regional Development
and Local Government
• House of Representatives Standing Committee on Regional Australia
• Senate Standing Committee on Community Affairs
• The Hon. Peter Dutton, MP (Liberal) – Shadow Minister for Health and Ageing.
A pre-arranged Press Conference was convened at the end of Day 4 which was attended by a
small group of SARRAH delegates and sponsored by Tony Windsor (MP).

CONCLUSIONS
In general, delegates considered the Summit to be well organised and an excellent experience.
The Summit was declared an overwhelming success by the participants.

LIST OF HIGH IMPACT STRATEGIES REQUIRING ACTION – 2011/12
The strategic planning workshop in preparation for the meetings at Parliament House resulted
in the refinement of 14 short term and high impact strategies which could be supported by the
Commonwealth Government and would make a significant difference to the delivery of allied
health services in rural and remote Australia.
Following the Summit, the list of strategies were reduced to 4 key areas and they follow:
1. Develop and implement a national rural health policy which is underpinned by a rural and
remote health plan.
2. Appoint a national Chief Allied Health Officer to sit alongside the Chief Medical Officer
and Chief Nurse positions. This new position should develop policies which contribute
towards implementing a multidisciplinary approach on delivering health services across
Australia.
3. Develop an allied health evidence database to inform strategies for workforce development
and reform. The collection of allied health workforce and service delivery data, to be
funded especially in rural and remote areas across Australia. Workforce data must be
collected nationally, and on a regular basis, using a consistent methodology which includes
both registered and self-regulating allied health professionals that compares supply with
demand.
4. Increase the current range of scholarship programs supporting allied health professionals
practising in rural and remote Australian communities. There is a clear lack of equity,
when these strategies are compared against the range and volume of programs available
to doctors and nurses. Such as funding and implementing a national rural mentorship
program which provides comprehensive orientation and support for new graduates,
those new to rural practice and practicing rural Allied Health Professionals. The program
should also include support for new and existing mentors and supervisors.
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2011 SARRAH Summit Delegates
The Hon. Nicola Roxon MP, Minister for Health and
Ageing and Helen McGregor, SARRAH President

The Hon. Warren Snowdon MP, Minister for
Indigenous Health and Helen McGregor, SARRAH
President

SARRAH Secretariat Staff

SARRAH Delegates with Tony Windsor MP

Senator Richard Di Natale and SARRAH
President, Helen McGregor
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2011 ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING
The 2011 AGM (Annual General Meeting) was held at Rydges Capital Hill on the 11 September,
during the National SARRAH Summit.
Key points of the AGM were:
•
•

•

•
•

The 2010-2011 Annual Report was presented.
The President’s position on the Board was declared vacant and Helen McGregor as the
only nominee for the President position and in accordance with the 2010 Constitution
was duly appointed.
Four Board Member positions were declared vacant. Nominations were received for
Deputy President Tanya Lehmann, Honorary Treasurer Ruth Chalk, Member Rob Curry
and Member Scott Wagner. In accordance with the 2010 Constitution the above nominees
were duly appointed.
It was noted that Elaine Ashworth, Tracy Leon, Kathryn Fitzgerald and Daniel Mahony had
1 year to run of term.
It was noted that PricewaterhouseCoopers will be retained as SARRAH’s auditor for
2011-2012.

In Attendance
Elaine Ashworth, Petra Bovery-Spencer, Ruth Chalk, Rob Curry, Karen Dixon, Kathryn Fitzgerald,
Ilana Jorgensen, Sheila Keane, Rosie Kew, Tanya Lehmann, Tracy Leon, Helen McGregor (Chair),
Daniel Mahony, Lindy Swain, Scott Wagner and Liz Williams.
Staff Members
Rod Wellington, Shelagh Lowe and Ruth Hawkings.
Noted Apologies
Owen Allen, Peter Bothams, Cathryn Carboon, Annie Farthing, Lee McGovern, Amy Stephenson
and Catherine Welsh.
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GOVERNMENT FUNDED SCHEMES
SARRAH continued to receive funding from DoHA to administer two projects during 2011-2012
including:
•

the allied health component of the Nursing and Allied Health Scholarship and Support
Scheme (NAHSSS).
• the RRHSSS (Rural and Remote Health Stakeholder Support Scheme). This funding is
provided to partially offset Secretariat costs.
The following tables shows the allocated budgets to administer the Schemes funded by DoHA in
2010-2011 and 2011-2012.

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION BUDGETS
Year

NAHSSS ($)

RRHSSS ($)

2010-2011

817,000

307,869

2011-2012

849,680

398,352*

* NOTE: This includes a one-off payment of $25,000 from the Health System
Capacity Development Fund for consultations and capacity building for rural and
remote allied health professionals.
Commencing 1 July 2010 until 30 June 2013 the SARRAH Secretariat will receive funding under
the RHHSSS. This scheme has been established to provide a consistent approach to DoHA funding
provided to six nominated rural and remote health stakeholder organisations. The objectives of
the scheme are to:
•
•

Ensure that stakeholders are able to contribute to the development of Australian
Government rural health policy and programs; and
Ensure the sustainability of rural and remote stakeholder organisations to enable ongoing
representation of members’ views to the Australian Government.

SARRAH commenced administering the allied health component of the NAHSSS, funded by DoHA
(Department of Health and Ageing), on 1 July 2010. The NAHSSS was a result of a 2009-2010
Budget measure which consolidated a range of existing programs to promote access to tertiary
education, professional development support and clinical placements for nurses and allied health
students and professionals.
The Australian Government’s purpose is to consolidate and build on workforce programs to
ensure they better align with, and are able to respond to, the needs of health professionals to
train and practise, particularly in clinical areas and locations of particular need.
SARRAH administers five allied health scholarship streams under the NAHSSS. These are the:
• Clinical Placements Stream
• Clinical Psychology Stream
• Continuing Professional Development Stream
• Postgraduate Stream; and
• Undergraduate Stream.
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SCHOLARSHIP BUDGETS
Year

NAHSSS ($)

2010-2011

11,183,000*

2011-2012

11,174,320*

* NOTE: This amount includes future commitment funding for the life of all
awarded scholarships.

Further information about the five NAHSSS Scholarship streams follows with additional statistical
information available on the SARRAH website at www.sarrah.org.au.
To assist in determining rurality, certain criteria is used as ranking tools where scholarship places
are oversubscribed. For example, rurality is determined by use of the ASGC-RA (Australian
Standard Geographic Classification - Remoteness Areas).
The ASGC-RA is a geographic classification system that was developed in 2001 by the Australian
Bureau of Statistics; as a statistical geography structure which allows quantitative comparisons
between ‘city and country’ Australia.
The structure classifies data from Census collection districts into broad geographical categories
called RA’S (Remoteness Areas) which define ‘remoteness’ i.e. the physical distance of a location
from the nearest Urban Centre (access to goods and services) based on population size.
RA1 - Minor Cities of Australia
RA2 - Inner Regional Australia
RA3 - Outer Regional Australia
RA4 - Remote Australia
RA5 - Very Remote Australia.
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NAHSSS
CLINICAL PLACEMENTS
SARRAH has administered the Clinical Placement Scholarships since 2008 under the AHPCS
(Australian Health Professional Clinical Placements) and NAHSSS Schemes. This scholarship is
aimed at increasing the number of allied health professionals practicing in rural and remote
Australian communities by providing financial assistance for student clinical placements in rural
and remote areas, to a maximum of six weeks in length and $11,000 in funding.

Clinical Placements
Applications Received/Offers Made by Financial Years 2008-2011
Applied

Accepted
798

582

566

285

240
101

Round 1-2008

240

85

Round 2-2009

Round 3-2010

Round 4-2011

Clinical Placements
Scholarships Accepted by Home ASGC-RA Classification 2011-2012

191

33
14
1

2

3
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2
4

CLINICAL PLACEMENTS
Clinical Placements
Length of Clinical Placements Completed 2011-2012

100
87

Number of Placements Completed

90
75

80
70
60
50
40

34
26

30
20
10

20

11

0
1

2

3

4

5

6

Number of weeks

Did you know?
The allied health workforce grew
by 35.3% between 2003-2008,
greater than both medical (33.5%)
and nursing (15.5%).
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CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY
SARRAH has administered Clinical Psychology Scholarships under the NAHSSS since 1 July 2010.
This scheme aims to increase the number of practising clinical psychologists, particularly in rural
and remote areas, by providing financial support to a maximum of $15,000 per year for two
years, to undertake training towards becoming an endorsed clinical psychologist.

Clinical Psychology Scholarships
Applied and Offered 2011-2012

Clinical Psychology Scholarships Offered by ASGC-RA 2012
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CLINICAL PSYCHOLOGY
Clinical Psychology Scholarships
Applied and Offered by Gender 2012

Did you know?

Exercise Physiologists are not ‘personal
trainers’ but university-trained experts
in therapy/rehabilitation designed to
prevent or manage chronic disease,
injury and disability.
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CPD
(CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT)
SARRAH has administered Continuing Professional Development Scholarships since 2003 under
various schemes. This scheme provides practising allied health professionals in rural and remote
Australia with scholarships to access CPD stream funding of up to $3,000, to undertake CPD
activies (including attendance at conferences, short courses, clinical placements and non-award
post-graduate modules) to upgrade clinical skills.
Two scholarship rounds are offered per calendar year. The first round opens each August and
covers CPD courses from 1st January - 30th June of the following year. The second round opens
each April and covers CPD courses from 1st July - 31st December of that year.

CPD Scholarships Applied & Offered 2011-2012

CPD Scholarships Offered by ASGC-RA 2012
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CPD
CPD Scholarships Offered by Activity Type 2012
100

90

90
80
70
60
50

42

42

40
30
20
10

3

3

0
Clinical Placement

Conference
Attendee

Post Graduate
Module

Short Course

Total

Did you know?

Pedorthists are specialists in
foot orthotics (pedorthics).
40
40

POSTGRADUATE
SARRAH has administered Postgraduate Scholarships since 2003 under various schemes. The
scheme provides allied health professionals who deliver clinical services in rural and remote
Australia to access funding to a maximum of $15,000 per year to undertake postgraduate studies.

Postgraduate Scholarships
Applied and Offered By State 2010, 2011 & 2012

Postgraduate Scholarships Offered by ASGC-RA 2012

41

POSTGRADUATE
Postgraduate Scholarships Offered by State 2012

Did you know?

Allied Health Professions
compose an estimated 60% of
the total health workforce.
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UNDERGRADUATE
SARRAH has administered Undergraduate Scholarships since 2005 under the RAHUS (Rural Allied
Health Undergraduate Scholarship) and NAHSSS schemes. This scholarship provides a maximum
of $10,000 per annum to students undertaking an eligible allied health entry level qualification
at an Australian university.

Undergraduate Scholarships Applied and Offered 2006-2012
4447

2007
ROUND 2

2008
ROUND 3

2009
ROUND 4

2011
NAHSSS R1

APPLIED

AWARDED

APPLIED

AWARDED

APPLIED

127

123

103

2010
ROUND 5

685

638

2012
7 Yr TOTAL
NAHSSS R2

Undergraduate Scholarships Awarded by ASGC-RA 2012

127
83

36
6

ASGC-RA

2

3

4

43

2

5

AWARDED

647

AWARDED

99

AWARDED

98

716

532

APPLIED

APPLIED

APPLIED

AWARDED

APPLIED

AWARDED

68

67

2006
ROUND 1

408

AWARDED

598

APPLIED

908

Total

UNDERGRADUATE
Undergraduate Scholarships by Discipline 2012
2

Chiropractic

5

Dentistry

10

Dietetics & Nutrition
Exercise Physiology

1
5

Medical Radiation Science

28

Occupational Therapy
Optometry

1
3

Oral Health
Orthoptics

1
7

Osteopathy

8

Paramedic

20

Physiotherapy
10

Podiatry
Prosthetics & Orthotics

2

Social Work

3
21

Speech Pathology

Did you know?

72.7% of the Allied Health
workforce are female.
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STEERING COMMITTEES/WORKING
GROUPS
During 2011-2012 SARRAH convened a number of Steering Committees/Working Groups. These
were:
• 2012 National SARRAH Conference Organising Committee
• NAHSSS Reference Group
• Capacity Building Working Group
• Other.
The members of the Committees/Groups, their objective and a brief status report follows.

2012 NATIONAL SARRAH CONFERENCE ORGANISING COMMITTEE
The Chair of the Committee and Convenor of the 2012 National SARRAH Conference was Ruth
Chalk. The Committee Members were:
• Michael Bishop, Libby Beyerle and Cherie Hazlitt
• Rod Wellington, Shelagh Lowe, Ruth Hawkings, Kirsten Lewis and Lisa Hall (Secretariat)
• Penny Archer, Kayla Clousen and Carly Wheeler (Conference Design).
The objective of the Committee was to oversee the arrangements for the 2012 SARRAH National
Conference.

NAHSSS REFERENCE GROUP
SARRAH was appointed by DoHA (Department of Health and Ageing) as the administrator of
the Allied Health component of the NAHSSS (Nursing and Allied Health Scholarship and Support
Scheme) from 1 July 2010.
Role of the Reference Group
• Assist in ensuring that the current processes to award scholarships meet the NAHSSS
guidelines and are fair and equitable.
• Provide advice and recommendations on documentation changes if required.
• Review amendments to guidelines as requested.
• Provide advice and comment on issues that may arise under the NAHSSS.
• Provide input into a review of approved disciplines for scholarship purposes.
• Receive regular updates/reports from the Scholarship Stream Managers.
The Reference Group representatives include members from the following sectors/groups:
• Allied Health
• SARRAH
• Consumer
• State Public Health
• Indigenous Community
• Student
• Psychology
• University Department of Rural Health
• Representatives from DoHA
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Administrative arrangements:
•
•

Meetings of the reference group were generally convened quarterly via teleconference
and were held on the following dates: 29/9/2011, 30/11/2011, 16/2/2012 & 17/5/2012.
Minutes and meeting papers were circulated electronically. Papers for discussion were
circulated with the agenda prior to each meeting and administrative support was provided
by the SARRAH Secretariat.

CAPACITY BUILDING WORKING GROUP
The Chair of the working group continued to be Tanya Lehmann. The Working Group members
were Caroline Ingham, Helen McGregor, Scott Wagner, Brian Hill, Daniel Mahoney, Rosie Kew,
Kathryn Fitzgerald and Heather Jensen. Administrative support was provided by the CEO.
The objectives of the Group were to:
•
•
•

Clarify SARRAH’s ‘value proposition’ to members and prospective members.
Identify strengths and gaps in existing capacity to meet SARRAH’s vision and primary
objective (as outlined in the Strategic Plan 2010-2013, reviewed and amended 2011).
Develop recommendations for strengthening SARRAH’s capacity.

Following a survey of members and non-members and the analysis of the results the Working
Group identified a number of priority actions to be progressed following approval by the Board.
Key areas for action included:
1.

Training and development

2.

Marketing

3.

Communication

4.

Membership Categories, Inclusions and Fees.

The Working Group was suspended during the second half of 2011-2012 whilst a survey was
conducted of the SAC (SARRAH Advisory Committee) Members. Work will be progressed next
year on the key areas for action following an analysis of the results of the SAC survey.

OTHER WORKING GROUPS
A number of small, short-term working groups were convened during the reporting period to
assist the Secretariat to develop submissions and proposals. Details of the submissions developed
by these working groups can be found at Appendix A. Proposals submitted during 2011-2012 are
listed in the Section: SARRAH Year in Review.
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ENVIRONMENTALLY SUSTAINABLE
WORKPLACE
The SARRAH Secretariat continues to work towards reducing its carbon footprint through
implementing environmentally sustainable policies and strategies for the use of electricity, water,
paper and recycling such as:
1.

Electricity
• Powering off computers, printers, photocopiers and other office equipment at the
end of each working day.
• Ensuring all computers/monitors are set to their most energy efficient setting.

2.

Water
• Turning on the dishwasher only when it is full.
• Producing filtered drinking water from tap water.
• Repairing dripping taps immediately.

3.

Paper
• Circulating agendas, minutes and other meeting related material electronically.
• Storing documents, records and reports electronically.
• Maintaining an electronic management system to administer all scholarship schemes.
• Printing double sided documents.

4.

Recycling
• Gathering waste paper, cardboard, plastics, cans and printer cartridges for recycle.
• Collecting and sending used stamps to the Royal Guide Dogs.
• Providing biological scraps such as tea bags, coffee grinds, bread, fruit and vegetables,
cakes and biscuits to feed a worm farm.
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SARRAH MEMBERSHIP
SARRAH currently has four (4) types of membership categories available.
Membership is open to individuals who support SARRAH’s primary objective “… to develop and
provide services that enable Allied Health Professionals who live and work in rural and remote
areas of Australia to confidently and competently carry out their professional duties in providing
a variety of health services.”

1. FULL MEMBER

(An individual who has an allied health profession qualification)
Entitlements:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

Full voting rights.
Eligible for election to the Board & SAC (SARRAH Advisory Committee).
Subscription to the Australian Journal of Rural Health.
Subscription to SARRAH publications.
Access to the ‘Members only’ section of the SARRAH website.
Partnership with the State Network Coordinator who networks with SARRAH members in
his/her State or Territory.
Partnership with the Network Coordinator who networks with all SARRAH members
nationally with the specific allied health profession.

2. ASSOCIATE MEMBER

(An individual who is not an allied health professional)
Entitlements:
a.
b.
c.
d.

Subscription to the Australian Journal of Rural Health.
Subscription to SARRAH publications.
Access to the ‘Members only’ section of the SARRAH website.
Partnership with the State Network Coordinator who networks with SARRAH members in
his/her State or Territory.

3. SeMI-PROFeSSIOnAl MeMBeR

(An individual who is an allied health assistant/support worker)
Entitlements:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Full voting rights.
Eligible for election to the Board & SAC.
Subscription to SARRAH publications.
Access to the ‘Members only’ section of the SARRAH website.
Partnership with the State Network Coordinator who networks with SARRAH members in
his/her State or Territory.
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4. STUDENT MEMBER

(A student enrolled in an allied health profession course)
Entitlements:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

Full voting rights.
Eligible for election to the Board & SAC as the Student Network Coordinator.
Subscription to SARRAH publications.
Access to the ‘Members only’ section of the SARRAH website.
Partnership with the Student Network Coordinator who networks with SARRAH student
members.
Partnership with the State Network Coordinator who networks with SARRAH members in
his/her State or Territory.

Did you know?
A 2007 national survey shows that mental health problems are relatively common in Australia.
Mental health care services can be delivered in a range of facilities by different health professionals,
although not everyone who needs help seeks it.
Medicare subsidises some mental health-related services: in 2009-2010, there were 1.8 million
services provided by GPs, nearly 2 million by psychiatrists, and 3.2 million by psychologists and
other allied health professionals.
Between 2005-2006 and 2009-2010, there was a 34% annual increase in the number of Medicare
subsidised mental helath-related services, with most of this growth in psychologist services. In
part, this is due to a program introduced in 2006 that subsidised the cost of seeing psychologists
and other allied health providers.
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MEMBERSHIP BENEFITS
There are many advantages to being a SARRAH member. Our members enjoy the following
benefits:
•
•
•

Networking across regional, state, national, discipline and special interest areas.
Share interests with others in rural and remote communities.
Have Influence through the opportunity to Inform, exchange Information and have Input
(the Quadruple “I” member benefit).
• Promote rural and remote allied health.
• Give and receive support.
• Overcome isolation.
• Find a sense of ‘belonging’.
• Contribute to position papers and submissions made by SARRAH.
• Participate in state based meetings of SARRAH members.
• Participate in discussion groups.
• Be part of a national, multidisciplinary organisation.
• Gain awareness regarding rural and remote allied health services and policy.
• Develop and gain confidence and competence in aspects of lobbying and advocacy,
policy development and implementation, writing for publication, communication and
networking skills.
• Participate in:
 The biennial National SARRAH Conference.
 The biennial National SARRAH Summit.
• Includes annual subscription to:
 Australian Journal of Rural Health.
 SARRAH publications.
The impact of being an active member of SARRAH can be summed up in the words of our
members:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Develop confidence in providing your point of view.
Learn about organisational management and governance.
Learn about finances, committee structure, constitution, running meetings and reporting
processes.
Learn how to represent rural and remote communities at Parliament House.
Learn how to prepare submissions, reports and proposals.
Learn how to work from a common allied health perspective, feel supported by like
minded people, gain direction and a positive way of contributing, networking and
providing information.
Learn how to think outside the square, become known and be asked to participate in and
contribute to meetings, workshops and reports, and participate in committees that you
may never have known about otherwise.
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SARRAH MEMBERS AS AT
JUNE 30 2012
SARRAH Members by Profession
Profession
Allied Health Workers
Associate Discipline
Audiology
Dental & Oral Health
Dietetics & Nutrition
Exercise Physiology
Health Administration
Medical Radiation
Occupational Therapy
Optometry
Paramedics
Pharmacy
Physiotherapy
Prosthetics and Orthotics
Podiatry
Psychology
Social Work
Speech Pathology

Members
1%
1%
2%
2%
10%
3%
1%
1%
19%
1%
1%
2%
23%
1%
5%
8%
7%
12%

SARRAH Members by State
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COMMUNICATIONS
SARRAH is a Journal Associate to the AJRH (Australian Journal of Rural Health). Robyn Glynn
continued her role in 2011-2012 as SARRAH’s representative on the AJRH Board of Management.
At a national level SARRAH continued to enhance its working relationship with a range of
stakeholders including:
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯
¯

Ministers Roxon/Plibersek and advisors
DoHA (Department of Health and Ageing)
HWA (Health Workforce Australia)
AHCRA (Australian Health Care Reform Alliance)
NRHA (National Rural Health Alliance)
NPHCP (National Primary Healthcare Partnership)
AGPN (Australian General Practice Network)
ARHEN (Australian Rural Health Education Network)
IAHA (Indigenous Allied Health Australia)
NAHAC (National Allied Health Advisors Committee)
UDRHs (University Departments of Rural Health)
NRHSN (National Rural Health Students’ Network)
AHPA (Allied Health Professions Australia)
Individual allied health and oral health professional associations
Medicare Locals.

SARRAH will continue to work hard as the voice for rural and remote allied health professionals
to enhance SARRAH’s profile amongst parliamentarians and other stakeholders.

SARRAH 2011 Summit Delegates
with Tony Windsor MP at the
Press Conference

SARRAH SECRETARIAT
The SARRAH Secretariat is located on the ground floor of the Rural and Remote Health Building,
10-12 Campion Street, Deakin ACT 2600.

CO-LOCATED BODIES
The Secretariat for the ARHEN (Australian Rural Health Education Network Limited) and
CRANAplus continue to sub-lease office space from SARRAH.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
SARRAH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
SARRAH had net assets of $12.94 million as at 30 June 2012.
An abbreviated SARRAH balance sheet presenting total assets and liabilities through to 30 June
2012 is presented in the table below.

2011 $
Total Assets
Total Liabilities
Net Assets/Total Equity

2012 $

9,290,137

12,942,268

135,556

171,019

9,154,5817

9,166,297

SARRAH had a net cash surplus of $12.77 million.
The table below represents the results through to 30 June 2012.

Receipts (government,
members, customers and
interest)
Payments (suppliers and
employees)
Net cash provided by
operating activities
Cash at the beginning of the
financial year
Cash at the end of the
financial year
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2011 $
14,834,494

2012 $
13,805,571

(8,281,291)

(9,162,070)

5,087,551

3,614,947

4,102,800

9,166,297

9,166,297

12,776,390

SARRAH received revenue of $12.8 million for 2011-2012.
The table below represents the actual results through to 30 June 2012.
2011
$
16,058,360
181,925
35,175
144,108
98,101
17,381,877

Grant Revenue (DoHA)
Interest Received
Membership Fees
Conference Income
Other

2012
$
12,362,352
233,465
28,477
122,655
83,379
12,830,328

SARRAH’s expenses were $9.1 million during 2011-2012 and the table below presents
actual results through to 30 June 2012.

Employee Benefits Expense
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Asset write off expense
Operating lease expenses
Scholarship payments
Conference expenses
Other expenses
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2011
$
846,933
28,239
89,411
6,835,704
173,187
531,709
8,505,183

2012
$
915,665
20,820
4,012
95,444
7,806,077
12,578
359,064
9,213,660

SARRAH Revenue and Expenses
2010 - 2012
20 million

15 million

10 million

5 million

0
2012

2011

2010

Revenue
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Expenses

SERVICES FOR AUSTRALIAN
RURAL & REMOTE ALLIED HEALTH
FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2012
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

Revenue
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Asset write-off expense
Operating lease expense
Scholarship payments
Conference expenses
Other expenses

Note

2012
$

2011
$

2

12,830,328
(915,665)
(20,820)
(4,012)
(95,444)
(7,806,077)
(12,578)
(359,064)

17,381,877
(846,933)
(28,239)
(89,411)
(6,835,704)
(173,187)
(531,709)

3,616,668
3,616,668

8,876,694
8,876,694

3
3
3
3

Net current year surplus
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2012
Note

2012

2011

$

$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

5

12,776,438

9,166,797

Trade and other receivables

6

78,880

24,697

Other current assets

7

39,234

30,947

12,894,552

9,222,441

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

9,166,797

Property, plant and equipment

8

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

47,716

67,696

47,716

67,696

12,942,268

9,290,137

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

9

139,663

116,222

Provisions

10

10,298

-

149,961

116,222

21,058

19,334

21,058

19,334

171,019

135,556

12,771,249

9,154,581

Retained surplus

12,771,249

9,154,581

TOTAL EQUITY

12,771,249

9,154,581

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

10

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

60

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012
Retained Earnings
$
277,887

Balance at 1 July 2010
Comprehensive income
Net surplus for the year
8,876,694
Balance at 30 June 2011
9,154,581
Comprehensive income
Net surplus for the year
3,616,668
Balance at 30 June 2012
12,771,249
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Total
$
277,887
8,876,694
9,154,581
3,616,668
12,771,249

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note
Receipts from government, members and
customers
Interest received
Net GST received/(paid)

2012
$
13,805,571

2011
$
14,834,494

233,465
(1,262,019)

181,925
(1,647,577)

Payments to suppliers and employees

(9,162,070)

(8,281,291)

3,614,947

5,087,551

(4,854)
(4,854)

(24,054)
(24,054)

Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

15

Net increase in cash held
3,610,093
5,063,497
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
9,166,297
4,102,800
financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
5
12,776,390
9,166,297
financial year
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012
The financial statements cover SARRAH as an individual entity. SARRAH is an association
incorporated in Western Australia under the Associations Incorporation Act 1987.
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, (including Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Associations Incorporation Act 1987.
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The association is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian
Accounting Standards. Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the
AASB has concluded would result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable
information about transactions, events and conditions to which they apply. Material accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have
been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.
The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on
an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the
measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial
liabilities.
The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.
The financial statements were authorised for issue on 6 September 2012 by the members of
the committee.
Accounting Policies
a.
Income Tax
No provision for income tax has been raised as SARRAH is exempt from income tax under
Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.
b.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less,
where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis and is therefore carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying
amount of plant and equipment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying
amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount. A formal assessment
of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to Note 1(e) for
details of impairment).
The cost of fixed assets constructed by the association includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, borrowing costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the association and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and capitalised lease assets, is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life commencing from the time the
asset is available for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either
the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset
Office equipment
Office furniture

Depreciation Rate
25-67%
8-20%
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Property, Plant and equipment (continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount.
These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. When revalued
assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation relating to that asset are transferred to
retained earnings.
c.
Leases
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with
the lessor, are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
d.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that
the association commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (ie trade date accounting is
adopted).
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs except where the
instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs are
expensed to profit or loss immediately.
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective
interest method, or cost. Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties. Where available, quoted prices in
an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques
are adopted.
Amortised cost is calculated as the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment, and
adjusted for any cumulative amortisation of the difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method.
The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) over the expected
life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected
future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying amount with a consequential
recognition of income or expense in profit or loss.
The association does not designate any interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint venture
entities as being subject to the requirements of Accounting Standards specifically applicable to
financial instruments.
(i)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified at “fair value through profit or loss” when they are held for trading
for the purpose of short-term profit taking, where they are derivatives not held for hedging
purposes, or when they are designated as such to avoid an accounting mismatch or to enable
performance evaluation where a group of financial assets is managed by key management
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d.
Financial instruments (continued)
personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value (ie gains
and losses) recognised included in profit or loss.
(ii)
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss through the amortisation process and when the financial
asset is derecognised.
(iii)
Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities and
fixed or determinable payments, and it is the association’s intention to hold these investments
to maturity. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss through the amortisation process and when the financial asset is derecognised.
(iv)
Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets that are either not capable of
being classified into other categories of financial assets due to their nature or they are designated
as such by management. They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there
is neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments.
They are subsequently measured at fair value with any remeasurements other than impairment
losses and foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss pertaining to that asset previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified into profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets when they are expected
to be sold within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. All other available-for-sale
financial assets are classified as current assets.
(v)
Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial guarantees are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss through the amortisation process
and when the financial liability is derecognised.
Impairment
At the end of each reporting period, the association assesses whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset has been impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events (a “loss event”) that has occurred, which has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset(s).
In the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the market
value of the instrument is considered to constitute a loss event. Impairment losses are recognised
in profit or loss immediately. Also, any cumulative decline in fair value previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss at this point.
In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, indications that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
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d.
Financial instruments (continued)
defaults.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate
allowance account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit
losses. After having taken all possible measures of recovery, if the management establishes that
the carrying amount cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the writing off amounts are
charged to the allowance account or the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced
directly if no impairment amount was previously recognised in the allowance accounts.
When the terms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or impaired have
been renegotiated, the association recognises the impairment for such financial assets by taking
into account the original terms as if the terms have not been renegotiated so that the loss events
that have occurred are duly considered.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual right to receipt of cash flows expires
or the asset is transferred to another party, whereby the entity no longer has any significant
continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are
derecognised where the related obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party
and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
e.
Impairment of Assets
At the end of each reporting period, the association assesses whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired. The assessment will consider both external and internal sources
of information. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by
comparing the recoverable amount of that asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value-in-use, to the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying
amount over its recoverable amount is immediately recognised in profit or loss.
Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset’s
ability to generate net cash inflows and when the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its
remaining future economic benefits, value in use is determined as the depreciated replacement
cost of an asset.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the association
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the
revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss
does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that class of asset.
f.
employee Benefits
Provision is made for the association’s liability for employee benefits arising from services
rendered by employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected
to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liability is settled. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining
the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the
employee may not satisfy any vesting requirements. Those cash outflows are discounted using
market yields on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected
timing of cash flows.
65

g.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial
position.
h.
Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors
Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts
receivable from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. Receivables
expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as
current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.
Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, less any provision for impairment. Refer to Note
1(e) for further discussion on the determination of impairment losses.
i.
Revenue and Other Income
Non-reciprocal grant revenue is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when
the association obtains control of the grant and it is probable that the economic benefits gained
from the grant will flow to the association and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably.
If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before it is eligible to receive the
contribution, the recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are
satisfied.
When grant revenue is received whereby the association incurs an obligation to deliver economic
value directly back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant
revenue is recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been
delivered to the contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt.
Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received.
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial
assets is the rate inherent in the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to
receive a dividend has been established.
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the
customer.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).
j.
Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The
net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing or financing activities, which are recoverable from or payable to the ATO, are presented
as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.
k.
Comparative Figures
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to
changes in presentation for the current financial year.
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k.

Comparative Figures (continued)

Where the association has retrospectively applied an accounting policy, made a retrospective
restatement or reclassified items in its financial statements, an additional statement of financial
position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed.
l.
Accounts Payable and Other Payables
Trade and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for
goods and services received by the association during the reporting period that remain unpaid.
The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of
recognition of the liability.
m.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result
of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that
outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the
amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.
n.
Critical Accounting estimates and Judgments
The committee evaluates estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements
based on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a
reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data,
obtained both externally and within the association.
Key estimates
Impairment – general
The association assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluation
of conditions and events specific to the association that may be indicative of
impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using
value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.
o.
new Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods
The AASB has issued a number of new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations
that have mandatory application dates for future reporting periods, some of which are relevant
to the association. The association has decided not to early adopt any of the new and amended
pronouncements. The association’s assessment of the new and amended pronouncements that
are relevant to the association but applicable in future reporting periods is set out below:
• AASB 9: Financial Instruments (December 2010) and AASB 2010–7: Amendments
to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) (applicable for
annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013).
These Standards are applicable retrospectively and include revised requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial instruments, as well as recognition and
derecognition requirements for financial instruments.
The key changes made to accounting requirements include:
• simplifying the classifications of financial assets into those carried at amortised cost
and those carried at fair value;
• simplifying the requirements for embedded derivatives;
• removing the tainting rules associated with held-to-maturity assets;
• removing the requirements to separate and fair value embedded derivatives for
financial assets carried at amortised cost;
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o.
new Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods (continued)
• allowing an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive
income. Dividends in respect of these investments that are a return on investment can
be recognised in profit or loss and there is no impairment or recycling on disposal of the
instrument;
• requiring financial assets to be reclassified where there is a change in an entity’s business
model as they are initially classified based on:
(a)

•

the objective of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets;
and
(b)
the characteristics of the contractual cash flows; and
requiring an entity that chooses to measure a financial liability at fair value to present the
portion of the change in its fair value due to changes in the entity’s own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, except when that would create an accounting mismatch. If such a
mismatch would be created or enlarged, the entity is required to present all changes in fair
value (including the effects of changes in the credit risk of the liability) in profit or loss.

The association has not yet been able to reasonably estimate the impact of these pronouncements
on its financial statements.
AASB 1053: Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards and AASB 2010–2:
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements
[AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 101, 102, 107, 108, 110, 111, 112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 127, 128,
131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and Interpretations 2, 4, 5, 15, 17, 127, 129
& 1052] (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2013).
AASB 1053 establishes a revised differential financial reporting framework consisting of two
tiers of financial reporting requirements for those entities preparing general purpose financial
statements:
•

Tier 1: Australian Accounting Standards; and

•

Tier 2: Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements.

Tier 2 of the framework comprises the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements
of Tier 1, but contains significantly fewer disclosure requirements.
Since the association is a not-for-profit private sector entity, it qualifies for the reduced disclosure
requirements for Tier 2 entities. It is anticipated that the association will take advantage of Tier
2 reporting at a later date.
•

AASB 10: Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11: Joint Arrangements, AASB 12:
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, AASB 127: Separate Financial Statements (August
2011), AASB 128: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (August 2011) and AASB
2011–7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation
and Joint Arrangements Standards (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on
or after 1 January 2013).

•

AASB 10 replaces parts of AASB 127 (March 2008, as amended) and Interpretation 112:
Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities. AASB 10 provides a revised definition of control
and additional application guidance so that a single control model will apply to all investees.
The association has not yet been able to reasonably estimate the impact of this Standard on
its financial statements.

•

AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011–8: Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 13 (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2013).
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o.
new Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods (continued)
AASB 13 defines fair value, sets out in a single Standard a framework for measuring fair value,
and requires disclosures about fair value measurement.
AASB 13 requires:
•

inputs to all fair value measurements to be categorised in accordance with a fair value
hierarchy; and

•

enhanced disclosures regarding all assets and liabilities (including, but not limited to,
financial assets and financial liabilities) measured at fair value.

These Standards are not expected to significantly impact the association.
•

AASB 2011–9: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or
after 1 July 2012).
The main change arising from this Standard is the requirement for entities to group
items presented in other comprehensive income (OCI) on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently.
This Standard affects presentation only and is therefore not expected to significantly impact
the association.
• AASB 119: Employee Benefits (September 2011) and AASB 2011–10: Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (applicable for annual reporting
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013).
These Standards introduce a number of changes to accounting and presentation of defined
benefit plans. The association does not have any defined benefit plans and so is not
impacted by the amendment.
AASB 119 (September 2011) also includes changes to:
(a)
require only those benefits that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which
the employees render the related service to be classified as short-term
employee benefits. All other employee benefits are to be classified
as either other long-term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits or termination benefits, as appropriate; and
(b)
the accounting for termination benefits that require an entity to recognise an
obligation for such benefits at the earlier of:
(i)
for an offer that may be withdrawn – when the employee accepts;
(ii)
for an offer that cannot be withdrawn – when the offer is
communicated to affected employees; and
(iii)
where the termination is associated with a restructuring of activities
under AASB 137 and if earlier than the first two conditions – when
the related restructuring costs are recognised.
The association has not yet been able to reasonably estimate the impact of these changes to
AASB 119.
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NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
Revenue
Department of Health and Ageing grants
Interest
Membership fees
Conference income
APS scholarship grant
Other
Total revenue
NOTE 3: SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
a.
Expenses
Rental expense on operating leases:
b.

Significant Revenue and expenses
The following significant revenue and expense items are
relevant in explaining the financial performance:
Department of Health and Ageing grants – 2010-11
Department of Health and Ageing grants – prior year
unexpended
APS scholarship grant
Employee benefits expense
Scholarship payments
Conference expenses
Other operating expenses

NOTE 4: AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Remuneration of the auditor of SARRAH for:
- auditing or reviewing the financial report
- other services
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2012
$

2011
$

12,362,352
233,465
28,477
122,655
83,379
12,830,328

16,058,360
181,925
35,175
144,108
867,843
94,466
17,381,877

(95,444)

(89,411)

12,362,352

12,307,867

(915,665)
(7,806,077)
(12,578)
(359,064)

3,750,493
181,925
(846,933)
(6,835,704)
(173,187)
(531,709)

2012
$

2011
$

11,025
6,180
17,205

9,300
1,200
10,500

NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and in hand
Short-term bank deposits

Note

16
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 2.4% (2011: 4.5%).
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the
statement of cash flows is reconciled to items in the
statement of financial position as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdraft

nOTe 6: TRADe AnD OTHeR ReCeIvABleS

Note

CURRENT
Trade and other receivables
Total current trade and other receivables

16

12,754,563
21,875

9,144,922
21,875

12,776,438

9,166,797

12,776,438
(48)

9,166,797
(500)

12,776,390

9,166,297

2012
$

2011
$

78,880

24,697

78,880

24,697

Credit risk
The association has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single
counterparty or group of counterparties. The main source of credit risk to the association is
considered to relate to the class of assets described as subscriptions receivable.
The following table details the association’s contributions and other debtors receivable exposed
to credit risk with ageing analysis and impairment provided for thereon. Amounts are considered
as “past due” when the debt has not been settled within the terms and conditions agreed
between the association and the member or counterparty to the transaction. Receivables
that are past due are assessed for impairment by ascertaining their willingness to pay and are
provided for where there are specific circumstances indicating that the debt may not be fully
repaid to the association. All members late in paying their subscription are potentially subject
to a late fee.
The balances of receivables that remain within initial terms (as detailed in the table) are
considered to be of high credit quality.
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nOTe 6: TRADe AnD OTHeR ReCeIvABleS (COnTInUeD)
Gross Past Due and
Past Due but Not Impaired
Amount
Impaired
(Days Overdue)

2012
Trade and
other
receivables
Total

$

$

$

$

61–
90
$

78,880

-

-

30,000

-

-

48,880

78,880

-

-

30,000

-

-

48,880

Gross Past Due and
Amount
Impaired

2011
Trade and
other
receivables
Total

< 30

31–60

Within Initial
Trade Terms

> 90
$

$

Past Due but Not Impaired
(Days Overdue)
< 30
31–60
61–
> 90
90
$
$
$
$

Within Initial
Trade Terms

$

$

$

24,697

-

-

1,000

-

1,218

22,479

24,697

-

-

1,000

-

1,218

22,479

Collateral held as security
No collateral is held as security for any of the accounts receivable or other debtors balances.
NOTE 7: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT
Prepayments
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2012
$

2011
$

39,234

30,947

nOTe 8: PROPeRTY, PlAnT AnD eqUIPMenT
Office equipment:
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Office furniture:
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total property, plant and equipment

2012
$

2011
$

116,939
(86,693)
30,246

142,409
(94,181)
48,228

35,077
(17,607)
17,470

33,132
(13,664)
19,468

47,716

67,696

Movements in carrying amounts
Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between
the beginning and the end of the current financial year:

Balance at 1 July 2010
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Balance at 30 June 2011
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Carrying amount at 30 June 2011

Office equipment
$
51,353
22,437
(1,790)
(23,772)
48,228
2,909
(4,014)
(16,877)
30,246
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Office Furniture
$
22,318
1,617
(4,467)
19,468
1,945
(3,943)
17,470

Total
$
73,671
24,054
(1,790)
(28,239)
67,696
4,854
(4,014)
(20,820)
47,716

NOTE 9: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Note

CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities:
Trade payables
Employee benefits
Income in advance

a.

2011
$

25,652
43,690
70,321
-

12,159
26,221
57,952
19,890

9a

139,663 116,222

16

139,663
139,663
(70,321)
(43,690)
25,652

116,222
116,222
(57,952)
(26,221)
32,049

10,298

-

Financial liabilities at amortised cost classified as trade
and other payables
Trade and other payables:
- total current
Less employee benefits
Less accrued expenses and other payables
Financial liabilities as trade and other payables

2012
$

NOTE 10: PROVISIONS
CURRENT
Long Service Leave provision
NON-CURRENT
Long Service Leave provision
Total provisions

21,058
31,356

19,334
19,334

NOTE 11: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
At balance date SARRAH has no know contingent liabilities or contingent assets.
NOTE 12: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS
a. Operating lease Commitments
Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not
capitalised in the financial statements
Payable — minimum lease payments:
- not later than 12 months
- between 12 months and five years
- greater than five years
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99,411
156,094
-

42,477
-

255,505

42,447

nOTe 12: CAPITAl AnD leASInG COMMITMenTS (COnTInUeD)
a. Operating lease Commitments (cont.)
The property lease commitment is a non-cancellable operating lease with a three-year term,
with rent payable monthly in advance.
Contingent rental provisions within the lease agreement require that the minimum lease
payments shall be increased by 4% per annum.
NOTE 13: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The committee is not aware of any significant events since the end of the reporting period.
NOTE 14: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
a. Key Management Personnel
Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the association,
directly or indirectly, including its committee members, is
considered key management personnel.
Key management personnel compensation:
- short-term benefits
- post-employment benefits

2012
$

166,220
14,960
181,180

2011
$

146,181
13,156
159,337

a. Key Management Personnel
There were no other related party transactions during the 2010-11 or 2011-12 financial
years.
NOTE 15: CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit
Profit

2012
$

2011
$

3,616,668

8,876,694

20,820

28,239

4,014

1,790

- (increase)/decrease in trade and term debtors and other
receivables

(54,183)

1,202

-

(8,287)
43,783
(19,890)
12,022

91,153
(3,919,119)
7,592

3,614,947

5,087,551

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities
Non-cash flows in profit:
- depreciation expense
- net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(increase)/decrease in prepayments
increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
(decrease) in other liabilities
increase/(decrease) in provisions
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nOTe 16: FInAnCIAl RISK MAnAGeMenT
SARRAH’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market
instruments, investments in listed shares, accounts receivable and payable.
The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as
detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables
Total financial assets

5
6

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
- trade and other payables

9

Total financial liabilities

2012
$
12,776,438
78,880
12,855,318

2011
$
9,166,797
24,697
9,191,494

25,652

32,049

25,652

32,049

Financial Risk Management Policies
The association’s Treasurer is responsible for, among other issues, monitoring and managing
financial risk exposures of the association. The Treasurer monitors the association’s transactions
and reviews the effectiveness of controls relating to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
Discussions on monitoring and managing financial risk exposures are held bi-monthly and
minuted by the committee of management.
The Treasurer’s overall risk management strategy seeks to ensure that the association meets its
financial targets, while minimising potential adverse effects of cash flow shortfalls.
Specific Financial Risk exposures and Management
The main risks the association is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and other price risk. There have been no substantive changes in the
types of risks the association is exposed to, how these risks arise, or the committee’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing or measuring the risks from the previous period.
a. Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance
by counterparties of contract obligations that could lead to a financial loss to the association.
Credit risk is managed through maintaining procedures (such as the utilisation of systems for
the approval, granting and removal of credit limits, regular monitoring of exposure against such
limits and monitoring of the financial stability of significant customers and counterparties)
ensuring, to the extent possible, that members and counterparties to transactions are of sound
credit worthiness.
Risk is also minimised through investing surplus funds in financial institutions that maintain a
high credit rating or in entities that the committee has otherwise assessed as being financially
sound.
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nOTe 16: FInAnCIAl RISK MAnAGeMenT (COnTInUeD)
Credit risk exposures
The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at the end of the
reporting period is equivalent to the carrying amount and classification of those financial assets
(net of any provisions) as presented in the statement of financial position.
There is no collateral held by the association securing trade and other receivables.
Accounts receivable and other debtors that are neither past due nor impaired are considered to
be of high credit quality. Aggregates of such amounts are detailed at Note 7.
The association has no significant concentrations of credit risk with any single counterparty or
group of counterparties. Details with respect to credit risk of trade and other receivables are
provided in Note 6.
b. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the association might encounter difficulty in settling
its debts or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The association
manages this risk through the following mechanisms:
–
preparing forward-looking cash flow analysis in relation to its operational, investing and
financing activities;
–
only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions; and
–
proactively monitoring the recovery of unpaid subscriptions.
The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for non-derivative
financial liabilities. The association does not hold directly any derivative financial liabilities.
Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management’s expectation as to the timing
of realisation. Actual timing may therefore differ from that disclosed. The timing of cash flows
presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement
dates.
Within 1 Year

Financial liabilities due
for payment
Trade and other payables
Total contractual outflows
Total expected outflows

2012

2011

$

$

25,652
25,652
25,652

Over 5
Years
2012 2011 2012 2011

1 to 5 Years
$

32,049
32,049
32,049

Financial assets — cash
flows realisable
Cash and cash equivalents 12,776,438 9,166,797
Trade and other
78,880
24,697
receivables
Total anticipated inflows 12,855,318 9,191,494
Net (outflow)/inflow on
12,829,666 9,159,445
financial instruments
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$

$

$

Total
2012

2011

$

$

-

-

-

-

25,652
25,652
25,652

-

-

-

- 12,776,438 9,166,797

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 12,855,318 9,191,494

-

-

-

- 12,829,666 9,159,445

78,880

32,049
32,049
32,049

24,697

nOTe 16: FInAnCIAl RISK MAnAGeMenT (COnTInUeD)
Financial assets pledged as collateral
No financial assets have been pledged as security for any financial liability.
c. Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk
Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at the
end of the reporting period whereby a future change in interest rates will affect future cash
flows.
(ii) Other price risk
Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk
or currency risk) of securities held. SARRAH is not exposed to price risk.
Sensitive analysis
The following table illustrates sensitivities to the association’s exposures to changes in interest
rates and equity prices. The table indicates the impact on how profit and equity values reported
at the end of the reporting period would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk
variable that management considers to be reasonably possible.
These sensitivities assume that the movement in a particular variable is independent of other
variables.
Year ended 30 June 2012
+/- 1% in interest rates

Profit
$
109,716

Equity
$
-

91,668

-

Year ended 30 June 2010
+/- 1% in interest rates

No sensitivity analysis has been performed on foreign exchange risk as the association has no
significant exposure to currency risk.
There have been no changes in any of the assumptions used to prepare the above sensitivity
analysis from the prior year.
Fair Values
Fair value estimation
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and
can be compared to their carrying amounts as presented in the statement of financial position.
Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Fair value may be based on information that is estimated or subject to judgment, where changes
in assumptions may have a material impact on the amounts estimated. Areas of judgment and
the assumptions have been detailed below. Where possible, valuation information used to calculate fair value is extracted from the market, with more reliable information available from
markets that are actively traded. In this regard, fair values for listed securities are obtained from
quoted market bid prices.
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nOTe 16: FInAnCIAl RISK MAnAGeMenT (COnTInUeD)
2012
Note
Carrying
Fair Value
Amount

2011
Carrying
Fair value
Amount
$
$

$

$

12,776,438
78,880

12,776,438
78,880

9,166,797
24,697

9,166,797
24,697

12,855,318

12,855,318

9,191,494

9,191,494

25,652
25,652

25,652
25,652

32,049
32,049

32,049
32,049

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable and other
debtors
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities

(i)
(i)

(i)

The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the following
methodologies:
(i)
Cash and cash equivalents, account receivable and other debtors and trade and other
payables are short-term instruments in nature whose carrying amount is equivalent to fair value.
Trade and other payables exclude amounts relating to the provision for annual leave, which is
outside the scope of AASB 139.
NOTE 17: ASSOCIATION DETAILS
The registered office of the association is:
Services for Australian Rural and Remote Allied Health Inc
10-12 Campion Street
DEAKIN ACT 2600
The principal place of business is:
Services for Australian Rural and Remote Allied Health Inc
10-12 Campion Street
DEAKIN ACT 2600
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SERVICES FOR AUSTRALIAN RURAL
AND REMOTE ALLIED HEALTH INC
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APPENDICES

82

APPENDIX A SARRAH SUBMISSIONS
During the reporting period SARRAH provided submissions and discussion papers to DoHA
(Department of Health and Ageing), HWA (Health Workforce Australia) and other organisations.
•

Concept of Operations: Relating to the introduction of a personally controlled electronic
health record system (PCEHR Concept of Operations) to the DoHA.

•

Registration Standards to the Medical Radiation Board.

•

Rural & Remote Health Workforce Innovation and Reform Strategy to HWA.

•

The ‘Inquiry into and Report on Use of ‘Fly-in, Fly-out’, ‘Drive-in, Drive-out’ Workforce
Practices in Regional Australia’ to the House of Representatives Standing Committee.

•

Practice-Level Indicators of Safety and Quality for Primary Health Care to the Australian
Commission on Safety and Quality in Health Care.

•

The ‘Inquiry into Factors affecting the supply of health services and medical professions
in rural areas’ to the Senate Community Affairs Reference Committee.

•

2011-2012 Federal Budget to the Treasurer.

•

A consultation paper on the ‘Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission
Implementation Design’ to the Treasury.

•

The ‘Inquiry into Palliative Care in Australia’ to the Senate Community Affairs Reference
Committee.

•

The ‘Registration Standard for Specialist Registration for the Podiatry speciality of
Podiatric Surgery’ to the Podiatry Board of Australia.

•

A consultation paper on the ‘Health Workforce Australia Professionals Prescribing
Pathway Project’ to HWA.

•

Provided submissions to:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.

DoHA
HWA (Health Workforce Australia)
House of Representatives Standing Committee on Regional Australia
Senate Community Affairs Reference Committee
Medical Radiation Board
Australian Commission on Safety and Quality in Health Care
Treasurer and Treasury
Podiatry Board of Australia.
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APPENDIX B MEETINGS & FORUMS
During 2011-2012 SARRAH was represented at various forums including, but not restricted to:

INTERNAL
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

SARRAH Board meetings via teleconference – 5.7.11, 6.8.11, 18.10.11, 20.12.11,
21.2.12, 24.4.12 & 19.6.12, with 11.9.11 being a face-to-face meeting in Canberra.
SARRAH Audit Committee meetings via teleconference – 20.7.11, 17.8.11, 21.9.11,
16.11.11, 14.12.11, 18.1.12, 15.2.12, 21.3.12, 18.4.12, 23.5.12 & 13.6.12.
SARRAH Conference Organising Committee meetings via teleconference – 11.7.11,
8.8.11, 17.10.11, 9.1.12, 20.2.12, 19.3.12, 16.4.12, 14.5.12 & 4.6.12.
SARRAH Advisory Committee meetings via teleconference – 26.7.11, 27.9.11, 31.1.12,
27.3.12 & 29.5.12.
SARRAH Capacity Building Sub-committee Working Group meetings via teleconference –
4.7.11, 1.8.11 & 17.10.11.
NT SARRAH Member meetings via teleconference – 12.8.11, 7.10.11, 16.12.11, 10.2.12
& 13.4.12.
SARRAH 2011 National Summit in Canberra – 11 to 14.9.11.
RHOF (Rural Health Outreach Fund), known as MSOAP (Medical Specialist Outreach
Assistance Program) jurisdictional SARRAH representatives meeting via teleconference –
19.4.12.
SARRAH State Network Coordinators meeting via teleconference – 25.6.12.
SARRAH & Medicare Locals webinar – 27.6.12.

ALLIED HEALTH
• NAHSSS Reference Group meetings via teleconference – 30.11.11 & 15.2.12.
• CPDWorks meeting via teleconference – 3.8.11.
• NAHRLS (Nursing & Allied Health Rural Locum Scheme) Steering Committee
meeting 21.9.11 (Canberra), 9.11.11 (Melbourne), 14.3.12 (Brisbane) & 17.4.12 (via
teleconference).
• NAHCEN (National Allied Health Clinical Education Network) meetings via teleconference
– 4.10.11, 6.12.11, 7.2.12 & 26.4.12.
• AHPA (Allied Health Professions Australia) Management Committee meetings via
teleconference – 10.8.11 & 15.9.11.
• Bush Support Services Roundtable Panel meetings via teleconference – 4.7.11, 17.10.11
& 12.6.12.
• Australian Physiotherapy Association Conference in Brisbane – 26 to 30.10.11.
• Pharmacy Guild Professional Collaboration Project meeting via teleconference – 7.11.11.
• Audiology Online Training and Supervision Project meetings via teleconference – 16.12.11,
16.1.12 & 23.1.12 (Sydney face-to-face).
• Allied Health Professional Support Network meeting via teleconference – 1.2.12.
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•
•
•
•

Paramedics Australasia meeting in Canberra – 15.2.12.
Close the Gap lunch with IAHA (Indigenous Allied Health Australia) in Canberra – 22.3.12.
IAHA meeting in Canberra – 17.4.12.
IAHA Board meeting in Canberra – 14.6.12.

PARLIAMENTARIANS
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Climate & Health Alliance Delegation at Parliament House in Canberra – 22 to 23.8.11.
Andrew Laming MP meeting at Parliament House in Canberra – 19.9.11.
Braedon Hogan (advisor to Senator McLucas) & FaHCSIA (Department of Families,
Housing, Community Services & Indigenous Affairs) Departmental Officers meeting at
Parliament House in Canberra – 28.9.11.
AHCRA (Australian Healthcare Reform Alliance) Parliamentary Delegation at Parliament
House in Canberra – 21.11.11.
Meeting with Tony Windsor & Advisors at Parliament House in Canberra – 24.11.11.
Tony Windsor Advisors meetings in Canberra – 1.3.12 & 10.5.12.
Minister Plibersek and Tony Windsor’s Advisors meeting in Canberra – 15.3.12.
Minister Plibersek’s Advisor meetings in Canberra – 16.3.12 & 31.5.12.
Minister Plibersek & Bronwyn Taylor (Minister’s Advisor) meeting in Canberra – 10.5.12.
SARRAH hosted breakfast with Tony Windsor (MP) & Advisors, Minister Plibersek’s
Advisors and Indigenous Allied Health Australia Senior Representatives in Canberra –
24.5.12.

PARLIAMENTARY COMMITTEES
•
•
•
•
•

Community Affairs Senate Committee hearing on the Personalised Controlled Electronic
Health Record Bill 2011 in Canberra – 6.2.12.
Presented to the Opposition Rural Backbench Committee in Canberra – 27.2.12.
Senate Community Affairs References Committee: Inquiry into Palliative Care in Australia
held in Canberra – 24.4.12.
Community Affairs Senate Committee Hearing - Factors Affecting the Supply & Distribution
of Health Services in Rural Areas held in Canberra – 11.5.12.
House of Representatives Committee Hearing - Fly-In-Fly-Out/Drive-In Drive-Out Work
Practices held in Canberra – 30.5.12.

AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENTS/AUTHORITIES
•
•
•
•
•

HWA meeting via teleconference – 22.7.11.
HWA Expert Reference Group - National Rural, Regional & Remote Workforce Strategy
forums – 3.8.11 (Canberra), 9.12.11 (Adelaide) & 29.3.12 (Adelaide).
NH&MRC (National Health & Medical Research Council) – Community Observer in
Canberra – 8 to 12.8.11 & 29.8 to 2.9.11
NeHTA (National e-Health Transition Authority) Rural & Remote National Consultation
Forum in Alice Springs – 24 to 25.8.11.
DoHA (Department of Health & Ageing) meetings in Canberra – 25.8.11, 14.11.11 &
27.6.12.
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•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

National Health Reform Briefings – 1.9.11 (Canberra) & 6.9.11 (Darwin).
Rural & Remote HWA Innovation & Reform Strategy Forums - 6.9.11 (Adelaide), 8.9.11
(Canberra), 12.10.11 (Darwin), 14.10.11 (Alice Springs) & 20.10.11 (Geraldton).
‘Four Cornered Roundtable’ - Introduction of the PCEHR (Personally Controlled Electronic
Health Record) meeting in Sydney – 7.9.11.
HWA Standing Advisory Committee for Health Professions meetings in Adelaide – 12.8.11,
4.11.11, 8.2.12 & 10.5.12.
Rural and Regional Health Australia meetings in Canberra –15.11.11 & 8.3.12.
HWA AHSCG (Allied Health Stakeholder Consultative Group) meetings - 18.10.11 (Premeeting via teleconference), 23.11.11 (Melbourne), 27.3.12 (Adelaide) & 30.5.12 (Premeeting via teleconference).
Medicare Australia Stakeholder Consultative Group meetings in Canberra – 26.10.11,
7.3.12 & 20.6.12.
AIHW (Australian Institute of Health & Welfare) Conference 2011 - Australia’s Welfare in
Canberra – 23 to 24.11.11.
HWA Future Leaders Group meetings in Adelaide 24 to 25.11.11 & 23 to 24.2.12.
HWA Funding Proposal and Possible Partnership Options meeting in Canberra – 2.2.12.
Australian Charity & Not for Profit Commission Community Consultation meeting in
Canberra – 8.2.12.
HWA Projects, Developing Clinical Teachers and Supervisors meeting via teleconference
– 1.3.12.
DoHA Rural Health Outreach Fund (formerly MSOAP) meeting in Canberra – 3.5.12.
DoHA General Budget Briefing in Canberra – 8.5.12.
Department of Human Services - Allied Health Medicare Compliance Audit meeting in
Canberra – 11.5.12.
NeHTA meetings – 11.5.12 (Canberra) & 30.5.12 (via teleconference).
FaHCSIA Better Start for Children with Disability Expert Reference Group meeting in
Melbourne – 13.6.12.
Standards Australia meeting in Canberra – 14.6.12.
AIHW Conference and Australia’s Health Report Launch in Canberra – 21.6.12.

Ml (MeDICARe lOCAlS)
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Tasmania ML Stakeholder Roundtable meeting in Bellerive – 19.8.11.
Medicare Local Access and Equity Roundtable meeting in Sydney – 2.11.11.
Illawarra-Shoalhaven ML meeting via teleconference – 24.11.11.
Meeting with Townsville-Mackay ML via teleconference – 7.12.11.
Meetings with Macedon Ranges & NW Melbourne ML via teleconference – 7.12.11 &
4.5.12.
Meeting with General Practice South Australia in Adelaide – 9.12.11.
Meeting with Hume ML via teleconference – 13.12.11.
Meeting with Barwon ML via teleconference – 20.12.11.
WA ML Transition Stakeholder Group meeting via videoconference – 3.2.12.
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•
•

•
•
•

Country South SA ML meeting via teleconference – 2.3.12.
Country South SA ML Board Selection Panel meetings – 29.3.12 (Adelaide), 8.5.12 (via
teleconference).
Country South SA ML Foundation Member meetings via teleconference – 13.4.12 &
11.5.12.
Country South SA ML Board Selection Panel Interviews in Adelaide – 16 to 18.5.12.
Darling Downs/South West QLD ML meeting via teleconference – 22.5.12.
North Coast ML Roundtable meeting in Lismore – 4.6.12.

•

ML Stakeholder Consultation Forum in Canberra – 6.6.12.

•

STATE & TERRITORY
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

NT Really caring for Kids meetings via teleconference – 19.7.11 & 16.8.11.
NT Department of Health & Families meeting in Canberra – 20.7.11.
Queensland Rural & Remote AHP In Service Presentation via teleconference – 1.8.11.
Victoria MSOAP (Medical Specialist Outreach Assistance Program) Maternity Services
meeting in Melbourne – 10.8.11.
WA Country Health Forum via teleconference – 17.8.11.
2011 ACT Chief Minister's Export Awards in Canberra – 29.9.11.
Queensland Council of Allied Health Professions meeting via teleconference – 8.11.11.
NSW Rural Allied Health Conference at Port Macquarie – 9 to 11.11.11.
WA Country Health Forum via teleconference – 1.12.11.
Allied Health Professions SA meeting via teleconference – 21.2.12.
TAHPAC (Tasmanian Allied Health Professional Advancement Committee) meetings via
teleconference – 27.4 & 1.6.12.
GP Victoria Network meeting via Webinar – 23.4.12.
Queensland Primary Health Care Network meeting via teleconference – 3.5.12.
Arthritis Queensland meeting via teleconference – 9.5.12.
NSW MSOAP Advisory Forum via teleconference – 18.5.12.
Tasmanian University Department of Rural Health meeting in Launceston – 16.5.12.
NT MSOAP Steering Committee meeting in Darwin – 30.5.12.

OTHER FORUMS
•
•
•

•
•
•

National Rural Leadership Development Seminar in Victor Harbour, SA – 6.8.11.
Healthy Ecosystems & Human Health meeting via teleconference – 18.8.11.
NRHA (National Rural Health Alliance) Council meetings – 16 to 20.9.11 (Councilfest –
Canberra), 14.11.11 (Canberra), 5.12.11 (via teleconference), 20.2.12 (via teleconference),
16.4.12 (via teleconference) & 18.6.12 (via teleconference).
RAHMS (Rural Allied Health and Medical Society) Rural Appreciation Weekend in
Dunedoo, NSW – 30.9 to 2.10.11.
National Indigenous Health Workforce Package meeting via teleconference – 11.10.11.
Northern Territory General Practice Education Board meeting in Darwin – 17.10.11.
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

ABC Riverland Interview via telephone – 13.10.11.
HESTA meeting in Canberra – 21.10.11.
Murray Darling Basin Plan Campaign meeting via teleconference – 27.10.11.
Australian Division of General Practice meetings in Canberra – 22.11.11 & 19.12.11.
CRANAplus meeting in Canberra – 29.11.11.
Australian Institute of Company Directors Forum in Canberra – 5.12.11.
Associations Forum meetings in Canberra – 13.12.11 & 8.2.12.
National Press Club speech by Tony Abbott in Canberra – 31.1.12.
Rural Health Workforce Australia meeting in Canberra – 20.2.12.
NPHCP (National Primary Health Care Partnership) meeting in Canberra – 13.3.12.
Climate & Health Alliance meeting via teleconference – 24.4.12.
National Primary Community Health Network meeting in Canberra – 10.5.12.
Rural Health West Expert Reference Group meeting via teleconference – 15.5.12.
RHEF (Rural Health Education Foundation) meeting in Canberra – 20.10.11.
NRHC (National Rural Health Conference) Advisory Committee meeting via teleconference
– 22.2.12.
ARHEN (Australian Rural Health Education Network) meeting via teleconference – 16.4.12.
Rural and Remote Policy Think Tank in Canberra – 19.4.12.
Andrew Greene ABC News 24 meeting in Canberra – 3.5.12.
Australian Institute of Policy Science Post Health Budget Briefing in Canberra – 10.5.12.
Westpac’s Federal Budget Announcement Dinner in Canberra – 14.5.12.
Attended ‘Paws up’ an Indigenous Display at Parliament House in Canberra – 31.5.12.
ARHEN Board meeting via teleconference – 12.6.12.
NRHSN (National Rural Health Student Network) Delegation meeting in Canberra –
18.6.12.
RHEF - Rural Health Channel launch in Canberra – 26.6.12.
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OFFICE ADDRESS
10-12 Campion St
DEAKIN ACT 2600
MAILING ADDRESS
Services for Australian Rural
and Remote Allied Health
PO Box 74
DEAKIN WEST ACT 2600
Phone: +61 2 6285 4960
Fax: + 61 2 6162 4094
Email: sarrah@sarrah.org.au
You can find out more about SARRAH
at our official website:
www.sarrah.org.au
We are also interested in your
feedback. Please do not hesitate to
email us at the address above.
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